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Bruce G. Luttrell, CPA, PC P.O. Box 2173 ___Stillwater, OK 74076

Certified Public Accountant (405) 743-1040

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Commission
City of Chandler, Oklahoma

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
each major fimd, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Finaneial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit, I conducted my audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, I express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinions.

Basis for Adverse Opinion on Chandler Community Development Trust Authority and Qualified Opinion
on Business-Type Activities

Management has not included the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority in the City’s financial
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statements. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the Chandler
Community Development Trust Authority to be presented as a major enterprise fund and financial information
about the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority o be part of the business-type activities, thus
increasing that activity’s assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and changing its net position. The amount by
which this departure would affect the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses of the business-type
activities and the omitted major fund has not been determined.

Adverse Opinion

In my opinion, because of the significance of the matter described in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion on the
Chandler Community Development Trust Authority and Qualified Opinion on Business-Type Activities”
paragrapl, the financial statements referred to above do not present fairly the financial position of the business-
type activities of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2015, or the changes in financial position or
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Unmodified Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund other than the Chandler Community
Development Trust Authority, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Chandler,
Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omiited the management’s discussion and analysis and the budgetary comparison information
that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. My opinion of the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s basic financial statements. The combining nonmajor governmental
fund financial statements, on pages 52 and 53, and the schedule of grant funds, on pages 54 and 55, are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining nonmajor governmental fund financial statements, and the schedule of grant funds, are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the



underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In my opinion, the combining nonmajor governmental fund financial
statements, and the schedule of grant funds, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated January 12, 2016, on my
consideration of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal control over financial reporting and on ny tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

e S

Bruce Luttrell, CPA, PC

January 12,2016
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CITY OF CHANDLER

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets:
Equipment and vehicles
Land and improvements
Buildings
Infrastructure
Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Liabilites
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued compensated absences
Notes payable - current portion
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Accrued compensated absences
Refundable deposits
Capital [ease obligations
Pension plan liabilities
Notes payable

Less: current portion

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions

Net position (Note 1.D.)

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total net position

JUNE 30, 2015

Statement 1

Government Business-Type

Activities Activities Totals
224,596.03 $ 695,236.90 919,832.93
3,467,271.60 1,756,200.40 5,223,472.00
463,496.81 209,459.11 672,955.92
16.55 5,92 22,47
4,155,380.99 2,660,902.33 6,816,283.32
3,755451.77 905,819.35 4,661,271.12
3,208,586.33 21,851.25 3,229,037.58
2,418,621.92 2,824,339.38 5,242,961.30
4,404,269.51 9,379,425.23 13,783,694.74
{3,718,684.20) (3,321,227.84) (7,039,912.04)
10,068,245,33 9,809,707.37 19,877,952.70
14,223,626.32 12,470,609.70 26,694.236.02
133,185.30 45 658.74 178,844.04
44,100,72 34,028.48 78,129.18
58,821.71 55,821.71
33,201.55 11,399.17 44,600.72
708,000.00 708,000.00
77,302.27 809,249 34 886,551.61
12,865.31 3,410.32 16,275.63
©7,800.00 67,800.00
117,893.39 117,893.39
1,480,605.50 47,763.50 1,528,369.00
6,629,598.53 6,629,598.53
(708,000.00) (708,000.00)
1,611,364.20 6,040,572,35 7,651,936.65
1,688,660.47 6,849,821.69 8,538,488.16
378,404.71 46,381.00 424,785.71
10,068,245,33 3,180,108.84 13,248,354 17
80,054.25 1,756,200.40 1,836,254.65
3,291,400,53 3,291,400,53
177.,606,49 177,606.49
(1,327,566.16) 683,756.51 (643,809.65)
$12,289,74044  $5620,06575 $17,909,806.19

The accompanying notes to the basic financlial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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" CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Statement 4

Cther Total
General Alrport CMA Cap Vater Cap Governmental ~ Gevernmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Sales tax % 1,281,10089 § 7088436 $ 708,843.41 § 708,843.41 $ 7088436  $2,840,556.53
Use tax 97,350.40 97,350.40
Cigarette tax 33,495.72 33,495,72
Intergovernmental 69,369.31 69,369.31
Franchise fees 168,922.75 168,922.75
Grants 219,256.46 219,256.46
Charges for services 850,714.40 650,714.40
Cemetery 10,340.66 10,340.68
Fines 79,251.46 79,251.46
Miscellaneous 264,046.20 22.503.33 1,053.08 287 602.61
Investment income 2,304.41 281.68 2,586.09
Total revenues 2,745,308.64 93,387.69 708,843.41 708 843 41 203,085.24 4,459,446.39
Expenditures:
General gavernment:
General government 498,933.56 27 532.57 £26,466.13
Cemetery 29,900.00 29,900.00
Public safety:
Police 662,817.02 35,000.00 697,817.02
Fire 835,719.83 94,720.44 930,440.27
Ambulance 326,336.73 326,336.73
Emergency Management 6,581.81 8,581.81
Code Enforcernent 69,287.46 68,287 .46
Court 74,717.69 7471769
Streets . 298,996.64 106,669.00 405,665.64
Culiure and recreation:
Parks and recreation 109,759.09 4,644.00 114,403.09
Lake 210,198.21 32,456.00 24265421
Golf 150,793.18 10,468.06 161,252.23
Library 116,821.49 116,821 .49
Airport 387,647.00 387,547.00
Wastewater - -
Water 49,676,895 98,683.00 - 148,269,95
Total expenditures paid 3,390,862.71 387,647.00 49 576.95 98 593,00 311,481.06 4,238,160.72
Excess of revenues coliected over (under)
expenditures (845,556.07) {294,158.31) 659,166.46 810,250.41 {108,415.82) 221,285,67
Cther financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers in 270,528.63 424,513.85 - - 12.23 695,054.81
Operating transfer out (12.23) - {419177.63) (575,341 84 - (994,531 .50)
Total other financing sources {uses) 270518.40 424,513.95 {419,177.63) (575,341.64) 12.28 (288,476.69)
Excess (deficlency) of revenues and other
resaurces aver expenditures and other uses (375,039.67) 130,354.64 239,988.83 34,908.77 {108,403.59) (78,191.02)
Fund halances, beginning of year 826,815.33 47 251,85 1,369,637.97 1,496,449.06 331,423.69 4,071,577.90
Fund halances, end of year $ 45177568 § 17760648 § 1609,626.80 § 1,531,357.83 §223020.10 $3,993386.88
(Continued})

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 20156

Statement 4 (cont.)

Reconciliation of the change in fund balances; total governmental funds to the change
in net position of governmental activities:

Net change in fund balances: total governmental fuhds (78,191.02)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life
of the assets:
Capital asset purchases capitalized 935,789.92
Depreciation {379,087.39)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Net increase in accrued compensated absences (3,375.98)
Net decrease in pension expense 78,851.49
Change in net position of governmental activities $ 553,087.02

The acecompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
8



CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

JUNE 30, 2015
Statement 5

Municipal
Authority
Enterprise
Assets Fund
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 695236.90
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,756,200.40
Accounts receivable 209,459.11
Accrued interest receivable 5.92
Total current assets 2,660,902.33
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets;
Equipment and vehicles 905,819.35
Land and improvements 21,351.25
Buildings 2,824,339.38
Infrastructure 9,379,425.23
Less accumulated depreciation (3,321,227.84)
Total capital assets 9,809,707.37

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

12,470,609.70

Deferred amounts related to pensions 45 658.74
Liabilities
Currant liabilities
Accounts payable 34,028.46
Accrued interest payable 55,821.71
Accrued compensated absences 11,389.17
Notes payable - current portion 708,000.00
Total current liabilities 800,249.34
Nencurrent liabilities
Refundable deposits 67,800.00
Accrued compensated absences 3,410.32
Pension plan liabiltiies 47,763.50
Notes payable 6,629,598.53
Less: current portion {708,000.00)
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,040,572.35
Total iiabilities 6,849,821.69
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amounts related to pensions 46.381.00
Net position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,180,108.84
Restricted for debt service 1,756,200.40
Unrestricted 683,756.51

Total net position

$ 5620,0685.75

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Statement 6

Municipal
Authority
Enterprise
Fund
Operating revenue
Charges for services:
Water $ 956,30553
Wastewater 251,148.39
Sanitation 481,755.72
Total operating revenue 1,699,208.64
Operating expenses:
Water 635,862.11
Wastewater 323,580.65
Distribution 329,283.52
Sanitation 309,693.30
Administration and general 252,802.74
Total operating expenses 1,851,312.32

Net operating income

Nonoperating revenue (expense)

(152,102.68)

Investment income 11,852.07
Interest expense {169,290.78)
Other income 8,654.56

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Net income before transfers

(148,684.15)

(300,786.83)

Operating transfers: In 844 519.27
Operating transfers; Out (544,043.98)
Change in net position (311.54)
Net position, beginning of year (Note 4.C)) 5620,377.29

Net position, end of year

$ 5,620,085.75

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF CHANDLER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Statement 7
Municipal
Authority
Enterprise
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers $ 1,731,198.03
Payments to suppliers {1,014,924.72)
Payments to employees (435,645.15)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 280,628.16
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers from other funds 844 519.27
Transfers to other funds (544,043.98)
Other income B,654.56
Net pension expense (31,022.74)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 278,107.11
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital asseis (89,096.00)
Issue new capital debt 1,830,000.00
Principat paid on capital debt {648,054 .41)
Interest paid on capital debt (169,290.78)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities 923,558.,81
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income 11,952.07
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,494,246.15
Cash balance beginning of year 957,191,115
Cash balance end of year $ 2,451,437.30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided {used} by operating activities
Operating income {loss) §  (152,102.88)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Cash flows reported in other categories:

Depreciation and amortization expense 366,030.01
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts recejvable 21,988.39

Accrued interest receivable -
Refundable deposits -

Accounts payable 30,168.40
Accrued interest payable 2,157.68
Accrued compensated absences 2,386.36
Net cash provided by operating aclivities 3 280,628.16

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
11
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Chandler, Oklahoma (the City} complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations.) The accounting and reporting framework and the more
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

Tn evaluating how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units. The
decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and GASB Statement No. 61, amending GASB Statements No. 14
and 34. The basic criteria for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing
body’s ability to exercise oversight responsibility. Accountability flows from the notion that individuals are
obligated to account for their acts, including the acts of the officials they appoint to operate governmental
agencies. Thus, clected officials are accountable for an organization if they appoint a voting majority of the
organization’s governing board. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting
majority of the organization’s governing body and (1} it is able fo impose its will on that organization, or (2)
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. An organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the
primary government if the primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the City’s financial reporting entity is composed of the following:
Primary Governtent: City of Chandler

Blended Component Units:  Chandler Municipal Authority
North Central Regional Airport Authority

Omitted Component Unit: Chandler Community Development Trust Authority

BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS

A blended component unit is a separate legal entity that meets the component unit criteria. In addition, the
blended component unit’s governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City Council, or the
component unit provides services entirely to the City. The component unit’s funds are blended into those of the
City by appropriate fund type to constitute the primary government presentation, The blended component units
are presented below:
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (continued)

Component Unit Brief Description / Inclusion Criteria Fund Included In

Municipal Authority Created September 15, 1970, to finance, develop, and operate  Enterprise Fund
(CMA) the water, wastewater, and sanitation activities of the City.
Current City Council members serve as entire governing body
(trustees). The City of Chandler is the beneficiary of the trust.

Notth Central Regional Created May 5, 1998, to finance, develop, and operate the Separate Fund
Airport Authority regional airport. The Authority is governed by five trustees,
which are appointed by the City Council of the City of
Chandler. The beneficiary of the trust is the City of Chandler
and any other additional beneficiaries admitted pursvant
to the trust indenture. The Mayor of the City of Chandler
currently serves as a frustee.

OMITTED COMPONENT UNIT

Based upon the application of these criteria, the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority is
considered a component unit of the City of Chandler. However, management has not included the Chandler
Community Development Trust Authority in the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, financial statements.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the Chandler Community
Development Trust Authority to be presented as a major enterprise fund and financial information about the
Chandler Community Development Trust Authority to be part of the business-type activities, thus increasing
that activity’s assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and changing its net position. The amount by which this
departure would affect the assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses of the business-type activities
and the omitted major fund is not reasonably determinable.

The Chandier Community Development Trust Authority (CCDTA) currently leases the Old Armory building,
from the City of Chandler, to house the Route 66 Interpretive Center. The building was renovated with a
$ 631,697 grant from the Oklahoma Department of Transportation. The Route 66 Interpretive Center was
opened on May 19, 2007. The lease was for an initial term of 20 years, for $ 1 per year., The City of Chandler
provides insurance coverage on the building, for which the CCDTA was to reimburse the City. An amendment
and an addendum to the lease were entered into on September 30, 2009, The amendment became a part of the
lease while the addendum is renewed cach fiscal year. Among other provisions, the City funds the CCDTA in
the amount of $ 2,000 per month, of which no less than 25 % is to be used for advertising to promote the City.
Other terms allow the City to waive the requirements of the CCDTA to reimburse the City for various expenses,
and contains certain reporting requirements.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria but do not
meet the criteria for blending, The City of Chandler does not have any discretely presented component units.

The Chandler Municipal Authority, and the North Central Regional Airport Authority, do not issue separately

audited component unit financial statements. The Chandler Community Development Trust Authority does issue
separately audited component unit financial statements.

13



CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting government
as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish
between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through
taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
constitutes its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses, Funds are organized info
three major categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. The City presently has no fiduciary funds. An
emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered
major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category
or type, and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental
and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. Governmental fund
reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are
assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purpose for which they may or must be used.
Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between governmental
fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance.

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City and is always classified as a major fund. It is used to
account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of the specific revemue sources that are either
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes or designated to finance particular functions or activities
of the City. The reporting entity includes the following special revenue funds that are reported as major funds:
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Fund Brief Description
North Central Accounts for specific revenues and transfers from other City funds and
Regional Airport expenditures for operations of the airport, and various capital projecs.
Authority The City is currently allocating five percent of its two cents sales tax

to the North Central Regional Airport Authority.

Capital Project Funds

Capital project funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction of specific
capital projects or items. The reporting entity includes the following capital project funds that are reported as
major funds; except for the City Capital Improvement Fund which is reported as a nonmajor fund.

Fund Brief Description

CMA Capital Accounts for the one cent sales tax under Ordinance 1995-06. Funds can
Improvement Fund be expended for capital improvements for water plant improvements,
sewer plant improvements, water line repair and replacement, or
sewer line repair and replacement, or any other public works projects
approved by the city council or the payment of debt service. The CMA
Capital Improvement Fund was not created and utilized until July 1, 2008.
Prior to that, revenue and expenditures were through the CMA TFund.

CMA Water Capital Accounts for the one cent sales tax under Ordinance 1980-04. Funds can
Improvement Fund be expended only for the water system. The CMA Water Capital
Improvement Fund was not created and utilized until July 1, 2008. Prior
to that, revenue and expenditures were through the CMA Fund.

City Capital Accounts for specific revenues and transfers from other City funds and
Improvement Fund expenditures for various capital projects. The City is currently allocating

five percent of its two cents sales tax to the City Capital Improvement

Fund, to be used for any capital improvement project approved by the

city council.
Cemetery Perpetual Accounts for the 12.5 % of all cemetery revenues that are legally
Care Fund restricted for cemetery use.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund

Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These activities
are financed primarily by user charges, and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income
measurement similar to the private sector. The reporting entity includes the following enterprise fund that is
reported as a major fund:
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

Fund Brief Description
Municipal Authority Accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing water,
(CMA) wastewater, and sanitation services to the public.

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus
applied.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus, as defined in item b
below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current
financial assets and labilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period.
These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end
of the period.

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives
of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost
recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent,
financial, or nonfinancial) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is
clagsified as net assets.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities and the fund financial statements,
governmental and business-like activities, and component unit activities, are presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurted or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes
place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds and agency funds are presented on the modified accrual

basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available,” Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued)
Available means collectible within the current period or within sixty days after year end. Expenditures
(including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obligation

bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the acerual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the statements of net position, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, “cash and cash
equivalents” includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an
original maturity of three months or less and money market accounts.

INVESTMENTS

Investments classified in the financial statements, consist entirely of certificates of deposit whose original
maturity term exceeds three months. Investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

RECEIVABLES

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.
Uncollectible accounts receivable, based upon historical trends, are very minimal and thus immaterial to the
financial statements. Thus, no allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has been recorded. Major
receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, alcoholic
beverage tax, motor vehicle taxes, and police fines. Business-type activities report utilities and interest earnings
as their major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as
sales tax, franchise tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both
measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund
financial statements in accordance with modified acerual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only
if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary fund material
receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received, Utility accounts receivable and
interest earnings compose the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Uncollectible accounts receivable, based
upon historical trends, are very minimal and thus immaterial to the financial statements. Thus, no allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable has been recorded.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as “due to and
from other funds.” Short-term interfund loans are reported as “interfund receivables and payables.” Long-term
interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (continued)

and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. See
Note 3.H. for details of interfund transactions, including receivables and payables at year-end.

INVENTORIES

The cost of consumable materials and supplies on hand are immaterial to the financial statements, and the City
has therefore chosen to report these items as expenditures at the time of purchase.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The accounting treatment of property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets are
used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund and similar discretely presented component unit
operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements,

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, fixed assets are accounted for as capital assets. All capital assets
are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities,
with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the
assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. A capitalization threshold of
$ 2,000 is used to report capital assets. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Office equipment 5-10 years
Furniture 7-10 years
Equipment 5-15 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Buildings . 20-40 years
Infrastructure 25-50 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital
outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets acquired for use in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets include cash and investments that are legally restricted as to their use. The primary restricted
assets, of the proprietary fund, are related to promissory note trustee accounts and utility meter deposits, The
primary restricted assets of the governmental funds are the sales tax amounts of the Capital Improvement Fund,
. and the grant and other restricted bank accounts of the General Fund.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (continued)

LONG-TERM DEBT

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund
financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in the
government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of notes payable and accrued compensated
absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements, The debt
proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principle and interest reported as expenditures.
The accounting for proprietary funds is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide
statements.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The City’s policies regarding vacation time permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and
sick leave. Vacation pay vests for full time employees, after six months of continuous service, as outlined in the
Personnel Policies Handbook, adopted by the city council on September 2, 2003. Vacation pay accrues on a
scale from 6.67 hours per month for zero to two years service, to 13.33 hours per month for 19 plus years of
service. Fire department and management employees are subject to a slightly different scale. Vacation time is to
be taken in the calendar year in which earned. Employees may carry over a maximum of forty hours from year
to year. Employees may request payment in lien of vacation time off for a maximum of forty hours each year.

Sick leave accrues for full time employees at 8 hours per month, to a maximum accrual of 1,400 hours although
it is not vested. Any employee who has not used more than two days of sick leave during the previous twelve
months may receive a well bonus equal to two paid days or have two days added to their vacation time as
determined by the department head,

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide statements.
The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial statements,
governmental funds report only the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial
resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.

EQUITY CLASSIFICATION

Net Position

Net position represent the difference between assots and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those asscts. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments,
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.D, ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (continued)

EQUITY CLASSIFICATION

The City applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available.

Fund Balance

Fund Balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as
follows:

Nonspendable —~ The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because they
are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable
form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the long-term
amount of interfund loans.

Restricted — Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments or is imposed by law through counstitutional provisions or enabling legislation (City
ordinances).

Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources
(from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used
only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. Legal enforceability means that the City can be
compelled by an external party — such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary to use resources created
by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes imposed by formal action (ordinance or resolution) of the City Council. Those committed amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the
same type of action (ordinance or resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In contrast to
fund balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed fund balance classification may be redeployed
for other purposes with appropriate due process. Constraints imposed on the use of committed amounts are
imposed by the City Council, separate from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue; therefore,
compliance with these constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund balance also
incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically
committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned — Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other
than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or
committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by the City Council or a
City official delegated that authority by City Charter or ordinance,
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CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY (continued)

Unassigned — Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which
amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

The City applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either restricted
or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund
balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications
could be used.

Fund balances at June 30, 2015, for the governmental funds are as follows:

Capital Projects Funds Othet
(General Alrport CMA Cap Water Cap  Government
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Fund balances:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related depreciation 7,238,25432  2,829,991.01 10,068,245.33
Restricted for;
Capital projects 4,522,05 4,522,035
Bond fund / CLEET 2,928.00 2,928.00
Perpetual cemetery care 72,604.20 72,604.20
Total Restricted 7,450.05 - - - 72,604.20 80,054.25
Committed to: -
Capital projects 1,609,626.80 1,531,357.83 150,415.9¢  3,291,400.53
Assigned to:
Alrport operations - 177,606.49 177,606.49
Unassigned (1,327,566.16) (1,327,566.16)
Total Fund Balances 5,918,138.21 3,007,597.30 1,609,626.80 1,531,357.83 223,020.10  12,289,740.44

1.E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES

SALES TAX

The City presently levies a four-cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales tax is collected by the
Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission.
The Tax Commission receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection by vendors. The sales tax
is allocated two cents to the General Fund, and two cents to the Chandler Municipal Authority. Of the two cents
allocated to the General Fund, five percent is allocated to the City Capital Improvement Fund, and five percent
is allocated to the North Central Regional Airport Authority Fund. Of the two cents allocated to the Chandler
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CITY OF CHANDLER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

1.E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES (continued)

Municipal Authority, one cent is allocated to the CMA Capital Improvement Fund, and one cent is allocated to
the CMA Water Capital Improvement Fund. Sales tax collected by the State in June and received by the City in
July has been accrued and is included under the caption “Receivable from other governments.”

The sales tax revenue note (Note 3.G.) will be repaid from a portion of the revenue generated by the two percent
sales tax levied pursvant to Ordinance Nos. 745 and 80-4 of the City, and transferred to the Chandler Municipal
Authority. The Authority has pledged the sales tax revenue to the Trustee as set out in the note indenture, and
has created a security interest in that sales tax revenue in favor of the Trustee for the benefit of the holders of the
notes, The Authority and the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, have entered into a Sales Tax Agreement, dated
December 1, 2014, wherein the City of Chandler agrees, on a year-to-year basis subject to annual appropriation,
to pay under certain circumstances to the Authority each month as received, a portion of the monies derived
from the levy and collection of the excise tax levied pursuant to the sales tax ordinances discussed above.

In accordance with the Sales Tax Agreement between the City and the Chandler Municipal Authority, dated
December 1, 2014, the City agreed to pledge the 1 % sales tax allocated to the Chandler Municipal Authority to
secure the payment of a § 1,175,000 Clean Water SRF Promissory Note, a $ 2,500,000 Drinking Water SRE
Promissory Note, as well as the $§ 1,300,000 and $ 530,000 Utility System and Sales Tax Revenue Notes. The
sales tax is to be deposited in a special account established in the General Fund of the City. The City agrees to
appropriate that money each year, to be paid over as received for immediate deposit in a bank designated by the
Authority, in an account to be established entitled the Chandler Municipal Authority Sales Tax Fund. The
Authority has pledged the Sales Tax Revenue for the purpose of paying debt service on the notes. In the event
the Authority is current on its debt service payments as required by the loan agreements and there is no event of
default as defined in the loan agreements, then any remaining Sales Tax Revenue in the Sales Tax Fund shall be
transferred back to the special account established in the General Fund of the City and shall be available on the
last day of the month for any lawful purpose.

USE TAX

The City levies a four-cent use tax on personal property purchased outside of Oklahoma but stored, used, or
consumed within the city. The use tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in
the month following receipt by the Tax Commission, which is one month after the tax is received from the
vendors. The use tax is allocated entirely to the City Capital Improvement Fund. Use tax collected by the State
in June and received by the City in July has been accrued and is included under the caption “Receivable from
other governments.”

PROGRAM REVENUES

In the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside the
City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues. The City has the following program revenues in each
activity:

General Government Permit fees
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1.E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND EXPENSES (continued)

Public Safety Fine revenue, fire protection, ambulance service, operating
and capital grants including State Department of
Agriculture grants

Culture and Recreation Sign up fees, membership feos, gate fees, use fees, operating

and capital grants include an Oklahoma Department of
Libraries grant

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even if

restricted for a specific purpose, except for the commercial vehicle tax and the gasoline excise tax, both of
which are restricted for street and alley purposes.

OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSES

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods and/or services. They also include all revenues and expenses not related to capital and related
financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.

1L.F. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial
statements have been eliminated or reclassified.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprictary fund categories is reported as
follows in the fund financial statements:

1. Interfund loans — Amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund
receivables and payables.

2. Interfund services — Sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as revenues
and expenditures/expenses.

3. Interfund reimbursements — Repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures/expenses to
the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as reimbursements but as adjustments to
expenditure/expenses in the respective funds.

4, Interfund transfets — Flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not expected is
reported as transfers in and out.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial
statements as follows:
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1,F. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

1. Internal balances — Amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and
payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of the Statement of
Net Assets, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type
activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

2. Internal activities — Amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements are
eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Activities except for the net amount of transfers
between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Transfers — Internal
Activities. The effects of interfund services between funds, if any, are not eliminated in the Statement
of Activities.

3. Primary government and component unit activity and balances — Resource flows between the primary
government (the City and Municipal Authority) and the discretely-presented component units (if
any) are reported as if they were external transactions and are classified separately from internal
balances and activities within the primary government.

1.G. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period (such as estimated useful lives in determining depreciation
expense.) Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various federal, state,
and local laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City’s compliance with significant laws and
regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows.

2.A. UNINSURED AND UNCOLLATERALIZED DEPOSITS

In accordance with State law, all uninsured deposits of municipal funds in financial institutions must be secured
with acceptable collateral. Acceptable collateral includes certain U.S. Government or Government Agency
securities, certain State or political subdivision debt obligations, surety bonds, or certain letters of credit. As
reflected in Note 3.A., all deposits were fully insured or collateralized.

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES — TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

3.A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credii Risk - Custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds deposits that are
uninsured and uncollateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust

department or agent but not in the City’s name, or collateralized without a written or approved collateral
agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the City holds investments that

24



CITY OF CHANDLER
Chandler, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES — TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS
3.A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

are uninsured and vnréegistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but
not in the City’s name. The City’s policy for custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with
collateral.

At June 30, 2015, $ 679,077.63 of the City’s bank balances of $ 6,143,304.93 was covered by federal depository
insurance, and the remainder (excluding the petty cash funds of § 740.00) was covered by collateral held by the
City’s bank in the City’s name, and by $ 4,100,000 and $ 400,000 Irrevocable Letters of Credit for Local Funds
issued in the City’s favor with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka.

Investment Credit Risk - The City’s has no investment policy that limits its investments choices other than the
limitation of state law as follows:

a) Direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies or instrumentalities to which the full faith and credit
of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State
is pledged.

b) Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with
in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state
financial institutions.

¢) With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime commercial
paper, and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.

d) County, municipal, or school district tax-supported debt obligation, bond or revenue anticipation notes,
money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose bencficiary is a county,
municipality, or school district,

¢) Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and
debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage
Association.

f) Money market funds regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and in which investments
consist of the investments mentioned in the previous paragraphs a,b,c, and d.

Public trusts created under Q.. Title 60 are not subject to the above noted investment limitations and are
primarily governed by any restrictions in their trust or bond indentures. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the
City, the Chandler Municipal Authority, and the North Central Regional Airport Authority complied, in all
material respects, with these investment restrictions.

Investment Interest Rate Risk — the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
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3.A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk — The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer, Since the
City has all investments in certificates of deposit, there is no concentration of investment credit risk exposure.

The deposits and investments held at June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Maturity Credit Market
Type (Months) Rating Value Cost
Cash Deposits N/A N/A. 5,982,566.87 5,982,566.87
Investments
Certificates of Deposit 12 N/A 160,738.06 160.738.06
Total Deposits and Investments 6,143,304.93 6,143,304.93
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Asgsets
Governmental Activities $ 3,691,867.63
Business-Type Activities 2.451.437.30
$ 6,143,304,93
3.B. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The amounts reported as restricted assets are composed of amounts held by the Municipal Authority for ufility
deposits (refunded upon termination of service or applied to final bill) of $ 73,283,04; amounts held in trustee
accounts on behalf of the promissory note in the amount of § 322,161.57, amounts held in various checking
accounts for various capital projects of § 4,613,047.30; amounts held in various grant and other checking
accounts of § 7,450.05; amounts held for airport operations of § 172,380.74; and amounts held for perpetual
cemetery care of § 72,559.41.

3.C. RESTRICTED REVENUES

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements. The
primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use
Sales Tax See Note 1.E.
Gasoline Excise & Commercial Vehicle Tax Street & Alley purposes
Grant proceeds Grant expenditures

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist entirely of utilities receivable. Accounts recetvable of
the governmental activities consist of sales tax (51.4 %), franchise tax (30.7 %), ambulance service (8.2 %), use
tax (1.3 %), tobacco tax (0.6 %), motor vehicle 1ax (0.4 %), gasoline excise tax (0.09 %), fines and court costs
(7.3 %), and other (0.01 %.) Receivables detail at June 30, 2013, is as follows:
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3.D. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

Accounts receivable $ 463,497 209,459 672,956

3.E. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
GGovernmental activities: July 1. 2014 Additions Deductions June 30, 2013
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3,208,586 § b $ 3,208,586
Other capital assets:
Office furniture & equipment 130,202 8,740 138,942
Equipment 1,760,600 147,604 1,908,204
Vehicles 1,437,314 270,991 1,708,305
Buildings 1,985,168 433,454 2,418,622
Infrastructure 4.329.270 75.000 4.404.270
Total other capital assets at historical cost 9,642,554 935.789 10,578,343
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office furniture & equipment 103,638 4,241 107,879
Equipment 936,881 105,735 1,042,616
Vehicles 1,129,622 106,169 1,235,791
Buildings 682,471 50,997 733,468
Infrastructure 486,980 111.944 598.930
Total accumulated depreciation 3.339.598 379.086 - 3,718.684
Other capital assets, net 6,302,936 556,703 - 6.859.659
Government activities capital assets, net $ 9,511,542 8 556,703 § - § 10,068,245
Business-iype aciivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 5 21,351 % $ i 21351
Qther capital assets:
Office furniture & equipment 26,222 4,096 30,318
Bquipment 686,466 086,466
Vehicles 189,035 189,035
Buildings 2,824,339 2,824,339
Infrastructure 9.294.,425 85,000 9,379,425
Total other capital assets at historical cost 13,020,487 $9.096 13,109.583
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Office furniture & equipment 39,012 389 39,401
Equipment 398,278 34,114 432,392
Vehicles 112,775 11,951 124,726
Buildings 565,480 4,396 569,876
Infrastructure 1,839,652 315,180 2,154,832
Total aceumulated depreciation 2,955.197 366,030 - 3,321,227
Other capital assets, net 10,065,290 <276.934> - 9.788.356
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 10,086,641 $ <276,934> § - % 9,809,707
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3.E. CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows in the Statement of Activities:

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General Government
Public Safety
Adrport
Streets
Culture and Recreation

Total depreciation expense for governimental activities

Business-Type Activities:
Water
Distribution
Wastewater
Admin and general
Total depreciation expense for business-type activities

3.F. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Payables in the General Fund and nonmajor governmental funds are composed entirely of payables to vendors.

$ 59,517

144,633
67,034
76,758

31.144

$ 379,086

$ 199,961

55,708
109,760
601

8 366,030

Payables of Utilities Enterprise Fund are also composed entirely of payables to vendors.

3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental

activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

As of June 30, 2015, the governmental long-term debt of the financial reporting entity consisted of the

following:
Accrued Compensated Absences:

¢ Current Portion
¢ Noncurrent portion

Total Governmental activity debt

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
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3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

As of June 30, 2015, the long-term debt payable from proprietary fund resources consisted of the following:
Notes Payable:

o In June 2006, the Authority and Bancfirst, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma,

(the “Trustee”) approved a note indenture providing for the issuance of

its Sales Tax Revenue Note — Series 2006, in the principal amount of

$ 5,630,000. Bank of America, N.A purchased the note. The note is for

a period of 13 ¥4 years, with interest at 4.495 %. Monthly payments are

made to a debt service fund maintained by the trustee, who then makes

the semi-annual principal and interest payments under the note. $ 2,145,000.00
e In December 2014, the Authority and Bancfirst, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma,

(the “Trustee”) approved a note indenture providing for the issuance of

its Utility System and Sales Tax Revenue Note — Taxable Series 2014,

in the principal amount of § 530,000. Branch Banking & Trust Company

purchased the note. The note is for a period of 15 years, with interest at

4.62 %. Monthly payments are made to a debt service fund maintained

by the trustee, who then makes the semi-annual principal and interest

payments under the note. 517,000.00
¢ In December 2014, the Authority and Bancfirst, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma,

(the “Trustee”) approved a note indenture providing for the issvance of

its Utility System and Sales Tax Revenue Note — Series 2015, in the

principal amount of $ 1,300,000, Bancfirst of Chandler purchased the

note. The note is for a period of 9 1/2 years, with interest at 2.45 %.

Monthly payments are made to a debt service fund maintained by the

trustee, who then makes the semi-annual principal and interest payments

under the note. 1,300,000.00
o In May 2012, the Authority entered into a loan agreement with the

Oklahoma Water Resources Board, as part of the wastewater project

discussed below, for § 1,175,000. The loan is for a period of 10 years,

with semi-annual payments beginning September 15, 2013. The loan

includes interest and an administrative fee totaling 1.67 %. 856,480.82
o InJuly 2012, the Authority entered into a loan agreement with the

QOklahoma Water Resources Board, as part of the drinking water system

discussed below, for $ 2,500,000. The loan is for a period of 10 years,

with semi-annual payments beginning September 15, 2013. The loan

includes interest and an administrative fee totaling 1.99 %. 1,811,117.7]

Total Notes Payable $ 6,629,598.53

The sales tax revenue note will be repaid from a portion of the revenue generated by an aggregate total of two
percent sales tax levied pursuant to Ordinance Nos. 745 and 80-4 of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma. As
consideration for the execution of the note indenture and the issuance of the note by the Authority and in order
to secure all the payments required by the note, the Authority has pledged the sales tax revenue to the Trustee as
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3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

set out in the note indenture, and has created a security interest in that sales tax revenue in favor of the Trustee
for the benefit of the holders of the notes. The Authority and the City of Chandler, Oklahoma, have entered into
a Sales Tax Agreement, dated December 1, 2014, wherein the City of Chandler agrees, on a year-to-year basis
subject to annual appropriation, to pay under certain circumstances to the Authority each month as received, a
portion of the monies derived from the levy and collection of the excise tax levied pursuant to the sales tax
ordinances discussed above.

In May 2012, the Chandler Municipal Authority entered into a $ 1,175,000 loan with the Oklahoma Water
Resources Board, through the Clean Water SRF (State Revolving Fund) Loan Program, for improvements to the
wastewater system. Under the FY 2011 Appropriation Bill for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Program
(CWSRF) the Oklahoma Water Resources Board had the ability to provide additional subsidization in the form
of principal forgiveness to projects that incorporate eligible “green” elements. The OWRB engineering staff
determined that $ 210,000 was considered “green” according to EPA’s Green Project Reserve Guidelines. Thus,
the loan principle forgiveness amount was $ 210,000, pending compliance with ORWB’s guidelines, That
amount was forgiven during the previous year. The security for the loan includes a pledge and assignment of
revenues derived by the Authority from its operation of the water, sanitary sewer and sanitation systems serving
the City of Chandler, and a year-to-year pledge of certain sales tax revenue (discussed in Note 1.E.)

In July 2012, the Chandler Municipal Authority entered inte a $ 2,500,000 loan with the Oklahoma Water
Resources Board, through the Drinking Water SRF (State Revolving Fund) Loan Program, for improvements to
the drinking water system. Under the FY 2011 Appropriation Bill for the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Program (DWSRF) the Oklahoma Water Resources Board had the ability to provide additional subsidization in
the form of principal forgiveness to projects that incorporate eligible “green” elements. The OWRB engineering
staff determined that $ 375,000 was considered “green” according to EPA’s Green Project Reserve Guidelines.
Thus, the loan prineiple forgiveness amount was $ 375,000, pending compliance with ORWB’s guidelines. That
amount was forgiven during the previous year. The security for the loan includes a pledge and assignment of
revenues derived by the Authority from its operation of the water, sanitary sewer and sanitation systems serving
the City of Chandler, and a year-to-year pledge of certain sales tax revenue (discussed in Note 1.E.)

The two Utility System and Sales Tax Revenue Notes were both issued pursuant to the General Bend Indenture
dated December 1, 2014, and separate Supplemental Note Indentures for each note (dated December 1, 2014,
and April 9, 2015.) Both notes are secured by the gross revenue of the system, and the sales tax revenue pledged
under the Sales Tax Agreement dated December 1, 2014, whereby the City agreed on a year-to-year basis to pay
the sales tax revenues derived from Ordinance No. 95-06, to be used for capital improvements for water plant
improvements, and/or any other public works project approved by the City Council, and/or the payment of debt
service. Pursuant to the terms of the General Bond Indenture and a Parity Agreement dated December 16, 2014,
between the Authority, the Oklahoma Water Resources Board, and the trustee, the mortgaged property and the
lien on the revenues of the system and the sales tax revenue are on a parity with the mortgage and lien in favor
of the existing debt.

Refundable Deposits:
s Refundable deposits reported as a liability within the Statement
of Net Assets are composed of the following:

Utility Deposits — Refundable $ 67,800.00
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3.G. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

Accrued Compensated Absences: :
e Current portion $ 11,399.17

e  Noncurrent portion 3.410.32
$ 14,809.49

CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Balance Balance  Amount Due
July 1, June 30,  Within One
Type of Debt 2014 Additions Reductions 2015 Year
Governmental Activities:
Accrued compensated absences 42,691 3,376 46,067 33,201
Business-Type Activities:
Bank of America 2,570,000 425,000 2,145,000 440,000
Oklahoma Water Resources Board 1,953,485 142,367 1,811,118 90,000
Oklahoma Water Resources Board 924,168 67,687 856,481 42,000
Utility Sys & Sales Tax Rev Note - 530,000 13,000 517,000 26,000
Utility Sys & Sales Tax Rev Note - 1,300,000 1,300,000 110,000
Accrued compensated absences 12,423 2,386 14,809 11,399
Refundable deposits 67,800 67,800 67,800
Total Business-Type

Activities 5,527,876 1,832,386 648,054 6,712,208 787,199

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, inclading principal and interest, for long-term debt, as of June
30, 2015, are as follows:

Bank of Oklahoma Water Oklahoma Water

Year Ended America Loan Resources Board Loan Resources Board Loan
June 30, Principal _Interest Principal _Interest Principal Interest
2016 440,000 91,473 42,000 18,119 90,000 45,919
2017 460,000 71,470 44,000 17,410 92,000 44,118
2018 485,000 50,568 43,000 16,675 91,000 42,278
2019 505,000 = 28,543 45,000 15,948 93,000 40,457
2020 255,000 5,731 136,000 15,171 278,000 38,556
2021-2025 - - 546,481 25,134 1,167,118 64,625
2026-2030 - - - - - -
Total 2,145,000 247,785 856,481 108,457 1,811,118 275,953
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Water System

Year Ended Airport Loan Improvements Loan

June 30, Principal _Interest Principal  Interest
2016 26,000 23,285 110,000 27,875
2017 27,000 22,084 120,000 28,420
2018 28,000 20,790 120,000 25,480
2019 30,000 19,450 120,000 22,540
2020 31,000 18,064 120,000 19,600
2021-2025 177,000 67,036 710,000 48,816
2026-2030 198.000 19,912 - -
Total 517,000 190,621 1,300,000 172,731

3.H. INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES

INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Transfers between funds of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2015, were as follows:

MAJOR FUNDS Transfers In Transfers Out
GENERAL FUND
Cemetery Fund 12.23
City Capital Improvement Fund 312,353.21
Municipal Authority 250,000.00 -
Total General Fund 562,353.21 12.23
CITY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
General Fund 312,353.21
ENTERPRISE FUND
Municipal Authority
General Fund 250,000,000
Airport Fund 294,043.98
CMA Capital Improvement Fund 269,177.63
Water Capital Improvement Fund 575.341.64 -
Total Enterprise Fund 844,519.27 544.,043.98
CMA CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Municipal Authority 269,177.63
Airport Fund 150,000.00
Total CMA Capital Impr Fund 419,177.63
WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Municipal Authority 575,341.64
ATRPORT FUND 444,043,98
CEMETERY FUND 12.23
GRAND TOTALS 1,850,928.69 1,850,928.69
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3.H. INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES (continued)

The transfers reflected in the above schedule are used to move restricted resources collected by the General
Fund to the funds authorized to spend the resources and to transfer funds from the Municipal Autharity to the
General Fund in accordance with the budget.

NOTE 4: OTHER NOTES
4.A. RETIREMENT PLANS

CITY MANAGER PLAN (the CMO PLAN)

Plan Description — During the current year, the City provided a defined contribution plan and trust known as
the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Customized Manager Option Plan Retirement Plan and Trust (the
CMO Plan) in the form of The Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Master Defined Contribution Plan
(OKMRF). The plan is administered by JP Morgan Chase Bank of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. The defined
contribution plan is available to any person who is in the position of City Manager. Separate audited GAAP —
basis financial statements are not available.

Funding Policy — Benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.
Employees are eligible to participate upon employment, and voluntarily elect their percentage of contribution
with a minimum contribution of 3 % of compensation. The City makes contributions to the CMQ Plan based on
the employment agreement with the employee and employer contributions are immediately vested. The City
contributed at 10 % during the year ended June 30, 2015. The authority to establish and amend the provisions of
the plan rests with the City Council. Contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2015, for employee
and employer were $ 2,965 and § 1,848, respectively, on a covered payroll of § 98,826.

OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description, The City of Perkins, as the employer, contributes to the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund
(OMRF) for all eligible employees except for those covered by the Police and Firefighters Pension Systems.
There are two programs available to each participating municipality, one being a defined contribution plan and
the other a defined benefit plan. The City participates in the defined benefit plan, which is a cost-sharing agent
multiple-employer type plan.

The OMRF issues a separate financial report that can be obtamed from OkMRF or from their website at
www.okmrf.org.

Benefits provided. OMRF provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.

Members participating in the Plan become 100 % vested after 5 years of service. Participants are eligible for
normal retirement at their normal retirement age, 65, with 5 or more years of vesting service. The normal
retirement benefit is equal to an elected percentage of final compensation for each year of credited service.
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4.A. RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

The City’s participates under Plan BB, with 2.25 % of final average compensation multiplied by the number of
years of credited service. Final compensation is defined as the average salary for the highest 60 consecutive
months (5 years) out of the last 10 years of the participant’s employment.

Members are eligible for early retirement after age 55 with 5 or more years of vesting service. The benefit
payable is reduced 5 % for each year the participant retires before normal retirement age.

A member is eligible for disability benefits upon becoming permanently disabled after 5 or more years of
service.

Contributions. The contribution requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by which plan the
municipality participates in. The City is participating in Plan BB, under which employees are required to
contribute 4.5 % of their annual pay, and the City contributes 8.76 % of the employees’ annual pay.
Contributions to the Plan from the City were § 91,317,

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

At June 30, 20135, the City reported a liability of $ 95,527 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense (income) of § (62,045). At June 30,
2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the OMRF
pension from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

Experience $ - $ -
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 92,762
Changes in proportion and differences between

City contributions and proportionate share contribution -
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 91,317 -

Total $ 91,317 $ 92,762

$ 91,317 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2016. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Year ended June 30:
2016 3 <23,191>
2017 <23,191>
2018 <23,190>
2019 <23,190>
2020 .
Thereafter -

FExpected Remaining Service Life of Members — Certain deferred inflow and deferred outflow calculations
require amortization over the remaining service life of the System’s members, including retirees. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2014, the membership’s remaining service life was 4 years. The average expected
remaining service life of the System is determined by taking the calculated total future service years of the
System divided by the number of people in the System including retirees. The total future service years of the
System are determined using the mortality, termination, retirement and disability assumptions associated with
the plan.
Years
June 30, 2014 4

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Inflation; 3%
Salary increases: 4 % to 7.42 % average, including inflation
Investment rate of: 7.55 % net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the UP1994 combined healthy with blue collar adjustment as appropriate, with
adjustments for generational mortality improvement using scale AA for healthy lives.

The actuarial present value of projected benefit payments is attributed to periods of time using the entry age
normal cost method. Assets and liabilities reflect only benefits payable from the OKMRF Trust.

Under the entry age normal cost method, the service cost for an employee is computed as the level percent of
pay which, if paid from the time the employee’s service begins aceruing benefits under the terms of the plan
until assumed retirement or other termination of employment, would accumulate to a fund sufficient to pay all
plan benefits payable to that employee. The service cost for the plan is the sum of the service costs so0
determined for all active employees participating in the plan.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation (3 %.) Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2014, are
summatized in the following table:
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Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Large Cap Stocks 25 % 540 %
Small/Mid Cap Stocks 10 % 7.50 %
Long/Short Equity 10 % 6.10 %
International Stocks 20 % 5.10 %
Fixed Income 30 % 2.60 %
Real Estate 5% 4.830 %

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at
the current contribution rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is projected
to be sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.

The employer has adopted a funding method that is designed to fund all benefits payable to participants over the
course of their working careers. Any differences between actual and expected experience are funded over a
fixed period to ensure all funds necessaty to pay benefits have been contributed to the trust before those benefits
are payable.

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionale share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.
The following presents the net pension liability of the City calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 %, as well

as what the Plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower (6.75 %) or 1-percentage point higher (8.75 %) than the current rate:

1 % Decrease Current Discount 1 % Increase
(6.75 %) Rate {7.75 %) (8.75 %)
Employers’ net pension liability $ 365,797 § 95,527 § <132,316>

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund financial report.

FIREFIGHTER’S PENSION AND RETIREMENT SYSTEM

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description. The City of Chandler, as the employer, participates in the Firefighters Pension & Retirement
Plan — a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Oklahoma Firefighters
Pension & Retirement System (FPRS). Oklahoma State Statutes grant the authority to establish and amend the
benefit terms to the FPRS. FPRS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
www.ol.gov/fprs.

Benefits provided. FPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan.
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Benefits for member hired prior to November 1, 2013, are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s final
average compensation times the employee’s years of service and who have reached the age of 50 or have
completed 20 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension benefit for
normal retirement is $ 150.60 per month. Benefits vest with 10 years or more of service.

Benefits for members hired after November I, 2013, are determined as 2.5 percent of the employee’s final
average compensation times the employee’s years of service and who have reached the age of 50 or have
completed 22 years of service, whichever is later. For volunteer firefighters, the monthly pension benefit for
normal retirement is $ 165.66 per month. Benefits vest with 11 years or more of service.

All firefighters are cligible for immediate disability benefits. For paid firefighters, the disability in-the-line-of-
duty benefit for firefighters with less than 20 years of service is equal to 50 % of final average monthly
compensation, based on the most recent 30 months of service. For firefighters with over 20 years of service, a
disability in-the-line-0f-duty is calculated based on 2.5 % of final average monthly compensation, based on the
most recent 30 months, per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years of service. For disabilities not-in-the-
line-of-duty, the benefit is limited to only those with less than 20 years of service and is 50 % of final average
monthly compensation, based on the most recent 60 month salary as opposed to 30 months. For volunteer
firefighters, the not-in-the-line-of-duty disability is also limited to only those with less than 20 years of service
and is $ 7.53 per year of service. For volunteer firefighters, the in-line-of-duty disability pension is § 150.60
with less than 20 years of service, or $ 7.53 per year of service, with a maximum of 30 years.

A $ 5,000 lump sum death benefit is payable to the qualified spouse or designated recipient upon the
participant’s death. The $ 5,000 death benefit does not apply to members electing the vested benefit.

Contributions. The contribution requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by Oklahoma
statute and are not based on actuarial calculations. Employees are required to contribute 9 % of their annual pay.
Participating cities are required to contribute 14 % of the employees’ annual pay. Contributions fo the Plan from
the City were $ 53,664. The State of Oklahoma also made on-behalf contributions to FPRS in the amount of
$ 79,545,329, these on-behalf payments did not meet the criteria of a special funding situation.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a liability of $ 1,460,821 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, The City’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating municipalities, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2014, the City’s proportion was 0.1421 percent.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of § 1,149. At June 30, 2015, the City

reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the firefighter’s pension
from the following sources:
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Deferred Qutflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

Experience $ - 3 -
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 221,128
Changes in proportion and differences between

City contributions and proportionate share

of contributions - -

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 53,664 -
Total b 53,664 $ 221,128

$ 53,664 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2016. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2016 $ <34,715>
2017 <34,715>
2018 <34,715>
2019 <34,715>
2020 <34,715>
Thereafter <47.,553>

Expected Remaining Service Life of Members — Certain deferred inflow and deferred outflow calculations
require amortization over the remaining service life of the System’s members, including retirees. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2014, the membership’s remaining service life was 6.37 years. The average expected
remaining service life of the System is determined by taking the calculated total future service years of the
System divided by the number of people in the System including retirees. The total future service years of the
System are determined using the mortality, termination, retirement and disability assumptions associated with
the plan,
Years
June 30, 2014 6.37

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 3%
Salary increases: 3.5 % to 9.0 % average, including inflation
Investment rate of: 7.5 % net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the RP2000 combined healthy with blue collar adjustment as appropriate, with
adjustments for generational mortality improvement using scale AA for healthy lives and no mortality
improvement for disabled lives.
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The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012,

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2014, are summarized
in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Fixed income 20% 5.48 %
Domestic equity 37% 9.61 %
International equity 20 % 9.24 %
Real estate 10 % 7.76 %
Other assets 13 % 6.88 %

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at
the current contribution rate and that contributions from participating employers will be made at contractually
required rates, determined by State statutes. Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma will
continue contributing 36 % of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.
The following presents the net pension liability of the City calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 %, as well as

what the Plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower (6.5 %) or 1-percentage point higher (8.5 %) than the current rate:

1 % Decrease Current Discount 1 % Increase
(6.5 %) Rate (7.5 %) (8.5 %)
Employers’ net pension liability $ 1,908,126 $ 1,461,282 $ 1,086,657

Pengsion plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued Oklahoma Tirefighters Pension and Retirement System financial report of the
FPRS; which can be located at www.ok.gov/fpts.
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POLICYE PENSION AND RETIREMENT SYSTEM

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description. The City of Chandler, as the employer, participates in the Police Pension & Retirement Plan —
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Oklahoma Police Pension &
Retirement System (OPPRS). Oklahoma State Statutes grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit
terms to the OPPRS. The system covers substantially all police officers employed by the 137 participating
municipalities and state agencies within the state of Oklahoma. OPPRS issues a publicly available financial
report that can be obtained at http://www.ok.gov/OPPRS/Financials/index.html.

Benefits provided. OPPRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to members of the plan, as well as
a deferred option plan.

The normal retirement date under the Plan is the date upon which the participant completes 20 years of service,
regardless of age. Participants become vested upon completing 10 years of service. Participants who have
completed 10 years of service may elect a vested benefit in lieu of having their accumulated contributions
refunded. They are entitled to a monthly retirement benefit commencing at age 50 or the date the participant
would have had 20 years of service.

Monthly retirement benefits are calculated at 2.5 % of the final average salary (the average paid base salary over
the highest 30 consecutive months of the last 60 months of service) multiplied by the years of service, with a
maximum of 30 years of service. Monthly benefits for permanent disability incurred in the line of duty are 2.5 %
of the participant’s final average salary multiplied by 20 years. This disability benefit is reduced by stated
percentages for partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. After 10 years of service, participants
who retire due to disability incurred from any cause are eligible for a monthly benefit based on 2.5 % of their
final average salary multiplied by the years of service. This benefit is also reduced by stated percentages for
partial disability based on the percentage of impairment. Effective July 1, 1998, once a disability benefit is
granted to a participant, that participant is no longer allowed to apply for an increase in the dollar amount of the
benefit at a subsequent date.

Survivor’s benefits are payable in full to the participant’s beneficiary upon the death of a retired participant. The
beneficiary of any active participant killed in the line of duty is entitled to a pension benefit. Effective July 1,
1999, a § 5,000 death benefit is also paid, in addition to any survivor’s pension benefits under the Plan, to the
participant’s beneficiary or estate for active or retired members.

Contributions. The contribution requirements of the Plan are at an established rate determined by Oklahoma
statute and are not based on actuarial calculations. Employees are required to contribute 8 % of their annual pay.
Participating cities are required to contribute 13 % of the employees’ annual pay. Contributions to the pension
plan from the City were $ 33,862. The State of Oklahoma also made on-behalf contributions to OPPRS in the
amount of $ 31,329,000; these on-behalf payments did not meet the criteria of a special funding situation.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

At June 30, 2015, the City reported a Hability (asset) of § (27,979) for its proportionate share of the net pension
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liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014. The City’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating municipalities, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2014, the City’s proportion was 0.0831 percent,

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense (income) of $ (48,978). At June 30,
2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the police
pension from the following sources:
Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

Experience $ - $ -
Changes of assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 110,896
Changes in proportion and differences between

City contributions and proportionate share

of contributions - -

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 33.862 -
Total $ 33,862 $ 110,896

$ 33,862 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2016. Any other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2016 $ <19,021>
2017 <19,021>
2018 <19,021>
2019 <19,021>
2020 <19,021>
Thereafter <15,791>

Expected Remaining Service Life of Members — Certain defesred inflow and deferred outflow calculations
require amortization over the remaining service life of the System’s members, including retirees, as determined
at the beginning of the measurement period. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the membership’s
remaining service life was 5.83 years. The average expected remaining service life of the System is determined
by taking the calculated total future service years of the System divided by the number of people in the System
including retirees. The total future service years of the System are determined using the mortality, termination,
retirement and disability assumptions associated with the plan.

Years
June 30, 2014 5.83
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Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2014,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

Inflation: 3%
Salary increases: 4.5 % to 17.0 % average, including inflation
Investment rate of: 7.5 % net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the RP2000 combined healthy with blue collar adjustment as appropriate, with
adjustments for generational mortality improvement using scale AA for active and disabled pensioners.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2014, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2007, to June 30, 2012.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense, and inflation} are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2014, are summarized
in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Real Rate of Return
Fixed income 2.83 %
Domestic equity 6.47 %
International equity 6.98 %
Real estate 5.50 %
Private equity 5.96 %
Commeodities 3.08 %

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at
the current contribution rate and that contributions from participating employers will be made at contractoally
required rates, determined by State statutes, Projected cash flows also assume the State of Oklahoma will
continue contributing 14 % of the insurance premium, as established by statute. Based on these assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.
The following presents the net pension liability of the City calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 %, as well as

what the Plan’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage
point lower (6.5 %) or 1-percentage point higher (8.5 %) than the current rate:
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1 % Decrease Current Discount 1 % Increase
(6.5 %) Rate (7.5 %) (8.5 %)
Employers’ net pension liability $ 166,470 $ <27,979> $ <191,855>

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System financial report.

SUMMARY OF PENSION ACCOUNTS

Following is a summary of the different pension funds’ effect on the current year financial statements:

Deferred Pension Deferred Prior Per.  Pension

Outflows Liability Inflows Adjust Expense
Ok.Municipal Retirement Fund - City 45,659 47,7763 46,381 79,508  <31,023>
Ok Municipal Retirement Fund — CMA 45,659 47,763 46,381 79,508 <31,023>

Ok Firefighters Pension & Retirement Fund 53,604 1,460,821 221,128 1,627,135 1,150
Qlk.Police Pension & Retirement Fund 33,862 <27.979> 110.896 98,033 <48.978>
Totals 178,844 1,528,368 424,786 1,884,184 <109,874>

4.A.1. TERMINATION BENEFITS

At June 30, 2013, the City’s reporting entity had no terminated employees participating in COBRA
health care in various options available from the City. COBRA participants pay 100 % of the premium
cost for continuing coverage. COBRA continuation coverage benefits are available for eligible
employees for 18 months. Dependents of employees who lose coverage due to a qualifying event are
eligible for 30 months. Benefits provided are not material to the financial statements.

4.B. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; employees’ health and life; and natural disasters.

The City manages these various risks of loss as follows:

Type of Loss Method Managed Risk of [.oss Retained
a. General liability: Purchased commercial insurance None
- Torts
- Errors and omissions
- Police liability
- Vehicle
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Type of Loss Method Managed Risk of Loss Retained
b. Physical property: Purchased commercial insurance,  Deductible amount
- Theft with a deductible of $ 1,000

- Damage to assets
- Natural disasters

c. Workers compensation: Purchased commercial insurance,  Specific aggregate stop
- Employee injuries claims are administered by loss coverage provided
CompSource Oklahoma by CompSource
Oklahoma
d. Health and life: All group health and life coverage  None
- Medical is insured through commercial
- Dental insurance
- Vision

Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled
claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

4.C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

COMMITMENTS

Capital Leases

In May 2011, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement with a local bank, for a fire truck. The lease
includes 10 annual payments of § 22,491.86 each, which includes interest at 4 %, and which terminate with the
fiscal year of the City (June 30.) The lease included nine successive options to renew for one year, under the
same terms,

In March 2015, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement with a local bank, for an ambulance. The lease
includes 48 monthly payments of $ 1,904.67 each, which includes interest at 3 %, and which terminate with the
fiscal year of the City (June 30.) The lease included three successive options to renew for one year, under the
same terms.

The annual lease payments are as follows:
Year ending

June 30 Fire Truck Ambulance
2016 § 22,491.86 $ 22,856.04
2017 22,491.86 22,856.04
2018 22,491.86 22,856.04
2019 22,491 .86 22,856.04
2020 22,491.86 -

2021-2025 22,491.86 -
Total 134,951.16 91,424.16

Less interest <17.057.76> <5.914.16>
Net fease oblgations $ 117,893.40 $  85,510.00
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Grants

The City was approved for a $ 108,775 Assistance to Firefighters Grant, from the Department of Homeland
Security, funded through the Federal Emergency Management Agency, to purchase equipment. During the
current year, the entire amount of the grant was drawn, and expended. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for
further details.

The City was previously approved for a § 2,500 grant from the Oklahoma Arts Council, funded by the
Oklahoma legislature through the Oklahoma Arts Council Small Grant Support Program, to help fund the
Chandler Ice Cream Festival, During the current year, the entire amount of the grant was drawn and
expended. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City has been approved for a § 2,500 grant from the Oklahoma Arts Council, funded by the Oklahoma
legislature through the Oklahoma Arts Council Small Grant Support Prograim, to help fund the Chandler Ice
Cream Festival. During the current year, none of the grant was drawn. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for
further details.

The City was previously approved for a § 74,707 Community Development Block Grant, funded by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development, passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce,
to help construct training classroom and living quarters in the existing fire station. The grant calls matching
funds on the City’s behalf of $ 85,359, part of which will be provided by the REAP grant discussed in the
following paragraph. The funding period runs from May 24, 2013 through May 24, 2015, During the
previous year, $ 59,741.57 was drawn, and expended, under the grant. During the current year, another
$ 14,525.43 was drawn, and expended. The City also provided $ 30,950.92 in matching costs in addition to
the REAP grant discussed below. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City was previously approved for a $ 74,707 Rural Economic Action Plan Grant (REAP) from the State
of Oklahoma, administered through the Central Oklahoma Economic Development District (COEDD) to
help construct training classroom and living quarters in the existing fire station. The funding period ran from
June 1, 2012, through June 30, 2013. During the current year, the entire amount of the grant was drawn, and
expended. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City was previously approved for a § 2,850 Community Expansion of Nutritional Assistance grant
(CENA) funded by the Central Oklahoma Economic Development District — Area Agency on Aging
(COEDD-AAAA) to install mini blinds and an emergency exit door in the senior center. The funding period
ran from July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015, No funds were received during the current year. Sce the
Schedule of Grant Funds for further details

The City has been approved for a $ 3,000 Community Expansion of Nutritional Assistance grant (CENA)
funded by the Central Oklahoma Economic Development District — Area Agency on Aging (COEDD-
AAAA) to purchase and install new fans and fixtures in the senior center. The funding period ran from July
1, 2013, through June 30, 2014. The entire amount of the grant was drawn, and expended, during the current
year. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for further details
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The City was approved for a $ 4,000 Emergency Preparedness Planning grant, funded through the
Oklahoma State Department of Health, for help identifying healthcare planming priorities, enhance
communications, and enhance information sharing. The contract period ran from August 1, 2014, through
June 30, 2015. The City requested, and was reimbursed, a total of $ 4,000 during the current year. See the
Schedule of Grant Funds for further details.

The City was previously approved for a $ 4,240 Emergency Preparedness Planning grant, funded through
the Oklahoma State Department of Health, for help identifying healthcare planning priorities, enhance
communications, and enhance information sharing, The contract period ran from September 1, 2013,
through June 30, 2014, During the previous year, the City requested, and was reimbursed, a total of $ 3,240.
During the current year, another $ 1,000 was drawn, and expended. See the Schedule of Grant Funds for
further detatls.

CONTINGENCIES

Grant Proeram Involvement

Tn the normal course of operations, the City participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from
year to year. The grant/loan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or
loaning agency, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or
loan. Any liability of reimbursement that may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably
determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

Litigation

The City is a party to various legal proceedings that normally occur in the course of governmental
operations. The financial statements do not include any accruals or provisions for loss contingencies that
may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over a 3-year
period by a City “Sinking Fund” for the payment of any court assessed judgment rendered against the City.
While the outcome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage
maintained by the City and the State statute relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or
judgment not covered by insurance would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of
the City.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Tn June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014.
GASB Statement No. 68 addresses improved reporting on pensions provided by state and local governments.
The City adopted GASB Statement No. 68 during the current year. The adoption changed various reporting,

footnote disclosures, and required supplementary information.

The following is a summary of the impact of the adoption of GASB 68 on the government-wide financial
statements of the City’s Governmental Activities as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, as previously

reported.
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As previously

Reported
Pension Plan Liability -
Total -

As Restated
<]1,480,605,50>
<1,480,605.50>

Adjustments
<1,480,605.50>
<1,480,605.50>

Net position - beginning of year
Change in net position
Net position — end of year

11,990,467.50
1,549.962.32
13,540,429.82

<1,804,676.40> 10,185,791.10
1,549,962.32

11,735,753.42

<1,804,676.40>

The following is a summary of the impact of the adoption of GASB 68 on the government-wide financial
statements of the City’s Business-Type Activities as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, as previously
reported.

As previously

Reported Adjustments As Restated
Pension Plan Liability - 47,763.50 47,763.50
Total - 47,763.50 47,763.50
Net position — beginning of year 1,035,445.01 <79,508.50> 955,936.51
Change in net position 4.664.440.78 - 4,664.440.78
Net position — end of year 5,699,885.79 <79,508.50>  5,620,377.29

Golf Course 1.oss

During the previous year, the individual who leased the golf course from the City (effective December 20,
2013) was possibly in violation of several sections of the lease agreement, ultimately culminating in the non-
payment of monies due the City under the lease agreement. The City has estimated the loss at approximately
$ 12,800 for the period January 1, 2014, through September 30, 2014. Charges have been filed against the
individual, and as of the audit report date, legal proceedings are pending.

4.D. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 12, 2016, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
SCHEDULE OF THE CITYS PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITIES
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

Exhibit 1
Year End
OMRF PENSION June 30, 2014

Proportion of the net pension liability 100 %
Proporticnate share of the net pension liability $95,527
Covered - employee payroll $1,134,252
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered-employee payroll 8.42 %
Plan's fiduciary net position $1,933,677
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability 95.29 %

OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.0831 %
Proportionate share of the net pension liability ($27,979)
Covered - employee payrail $231,835
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered-employee payroll (12.07 %)

Plan's fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

$2,238,466,000

total pension liability 101.53 %
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTER'S PENSION

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.1421 %
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $1,460,821
Covered - employee payroll $381,480
Proportionate Share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered-employee payroll 382.94 %
Plan's fiduciary net position $3,122,086
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability 68.12 %

Notes to Schedule:

*  June 30, 2015, was the first year of implementation, therefore only cne year is shown.
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CITY OF CHANDLER
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
ALL PENSIONS
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

Exhibit 2
Year End
ONRF PENSION June 30, 2014
Coniractually required contribution $89,845
Contributions in relation fo the contractually required contributions $89,845
Contribution deficiency (excess) 80
City's covered-employee payroll 51,134,252
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 7.92%
OKLAHOMA POLICE PENSION
Contractually required contribution $30,218
Contributions in relation fo the contractually required contributions $30,218
Contribution deficiency (excess) $0
City's covered-employee payroll $231,835
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 13.03%
OKLAHOMA FIREFIGHTER'S PENSION
Contractually required contribution $53,093
Contributions in relation fo the contractually required contributions $53,093
Contribution deficiency (excess) $0
City's covered-employee payroll $381,480
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 13.92%

Notes to Schedule:

*  June 30, 2015, was the first year of implementation, therefore only one year is shown.
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Bruce G. Luttl”e]], CPA, PC P.0. Box 2173 Strllwater, OK 74076

Certified Public Accountant (4085) 7483-1040

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council
Chandler, Oklahoma

I have audited, in accordance with the anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the apgregate remaining fund information of the City of Chandler,
Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, basic financial statements, and have issued my report
thereon dated January 12, 2016. The financial statements of the Chandler Community Development Trust
Authority were not included in the City of Chandler’s financial statements and, accordingly, this report does not
include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable noncompliance
associated with the Chandler Community Development Trust Authority, My report included an explanatory
paragraph that stated management had not presented the management’s discussion and analysis and the
budgetary comparison information, to supplement the financial statements, and my report on the business-type
activities was qualified due to the omission of a component unit.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s,
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal control,
Accordingly, T do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal confrol such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my aundit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that I consider fo be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Chandler, Oklahoma’s, financial statements
are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit and, accordingly, I do not express such an opinion, The results of
my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards,

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

o

Bruce G. Luttrell, CPA, PC

January 12, 2016
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CITY OF CHANDLER
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Inventory

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Payable to other funds
Less; current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved, reported in nonmajor
special revenue funds
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor
special revenue funds
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Exhibit 3
CAPITAL PROJECTS Total
FUNDS Nonmajor
Cemetery City Cap Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
$ 72,559.41 $ 136,018,236 $ 208,577.77
31.12 15,022.54 15,053.66
13.67 13.67
$ 72,604.20 $ 151,040,090 $ 223,645.10
$ - $ 625.00  § 625.00
- 625.00 625.00
- 625.00 625.00
72,604.20 150,415.90 223,020.10
72,604.20 150,415.90 223,020.10
$ 72,604.20 $ 151,04090 § 223,645.10
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CITY OF CHANDLER

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Revenues:

Sales tax

Use tax

Cigarette tax

Grants

Charge for services

Miscellaneous

Investment income
Totai Revenues

Expenditures;

General government
Streets

Police

Fire

Ambulance

Lake

Golf

Parks & Recreation
Wastewater
Amertization

Community Development Trust Authority

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses).

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund Balances - beginning

Fund Balances - ending

Exhibit 4
CAPITAL PROJECTS Total
FUNDS Nonmajor

Cemetery City Cap Governmental

Fund Fund Funds
$ - $ 7088436 $§  70,884.36
97.,350.40 97,350.40
33,495.72 33,495.72
1,053.08 1,053.08
281.68 281.68
1,334.76 201,730.48 203,085.24
27,532.57 27,532.57
106,669.00 106,669.00
35,000.00 35,000.00
94 720 .44 94,720.44
32,456.00 32,456.00
10,459.05 10,459.05
4,644.00 4,644.00
- 311,481.06 311,481.06
1,334.76 (109,750,58) (108,415.82)
12.23 - 12.23
12.23 - 12.23
1,346.99 {109,750.58) (108,403.59)
71,257 21 260,166.48 331,423.69
$ 72,604.20 $ 150,415.90 $ 22302010
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